* JENNIFER E. SMILEY
Email: jsmiley@cfic.gov

- JOSEPH A. KONIZESKI
Email: jkonizeski@cftc.gov

- Attorneys for Plaintiff

FILED IN TH
UNITED STATES DISTRIECT COURT

DISTRICT OF HAWAII
2OCT 28 2010

at__o'clock and____
SUE BEITIA, CLI CLERK

U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission

525 W. Monroe Street, Suite 1100 -

Chicago, IL 60661

Telephone (312) 596-0530 (Smlley)

(312) 596-0546 (Konizeski)

Fascimile: (312) 596-0714

o UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
| - FOR THE DISTRICT OF HAWAII

© U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES

~ TRADING COMMISSION,
' Plaintiff,
VY.
ALOHA TRADING COMPANY,
'INC., PERRY JAY GRIGGS and
RACHELLE GRIGGS

Def_endalits.

S Nt Nt N Nt Nt Nt N S M e e e o

C1v1l ACthIl NO@ V 1 G 0 O 6 5 E) S@ﬁ’%
BMK

‘COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE

RELIEF, CIVIL MONETARY
PENALTIES, AND OTHER
EQUITABLE RELIEF;
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

- Summary |

1. . Beginning in or about 2005 and continuing through late -_200-9, ,

‘defendant Aloha Trading Company (“Aloha”), through its officers, agents and -
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other pefsons acting for it, including defendants Perry }ay Griggs and Rachelle
- Griggs, as well as Perry Griggs and Rachelle Griggs individually, fraudulently

solicited money from members.of the general public for participation interests in a

commodity pool that purportedly was to trade commodity futures contracts. In

fact, Aloha, Perry Jay Griggs and Rachelle Griggs (collectively, “Defendants”)

operated a classic Ponzi scheme. They succeeded in soliciting over $3 million in

investments from participants, of Which they misappropriated approximately $1
million _for persoxial uses, including payments for luxury car leases, the rental of a
home in Hawaii, the purchase of Jewelry, and the chartering of a private jet:

Defendani_:s.also misappropriated approximately $1.1 million to pay “_returns”‘on

' the investments made by participants in their Ponzi scheme.

2. This scheme began Whil_e Pei‘ry _G_r_iggS was serving a federal prison
sentence for wire fraud and money l_aunderirig. While_inéafcerated on these |

criminal charges, Perry Griggs solicited investments from f_cllbw prisoners while

‘his wife, Rachelle Griggs, solicited investments from families of prisoners and

other merr_nbers- of the genefal. public. 'B-e.cause_the prison where Perry Griggs was .

'incarcerated.houscd many inmates from Hawaii, many of Defendants’ victims

résided in Hawati.

3.  Perryand Rachelle 'Griggs both claimed that Perry Griggs was an

B exp.erft commodity trader and that participants’ funds would be used to trade
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commodity futures. In fact, he was not a successful bominodity trader: Both
individual Defendants promised enormous returns in the férm of moﬁthly
payments fof a determined. length of timel(usually five years), and a lump sum
payment of as much as $3 millién at the end of the time period. Both individual
De.fendarits convinced many of the individuals they solicited to réﬁnance their
homes and invest the préceeds_- with Defend_ants. Othér participants liquidated
retirement accounts and invested with Defeﬁdants.

4.  Defendants pooled the funds they received from participants and

~ deposited a fraction of those funds in commodity futures trading accounts that they

controlled. Defendants lost 83% of the_mdney they-de'po-sited'in those accounts

~ trading futures contracts. Perry and Rachelle Griggs ‘also misapp’ropﬁated some of

~ the funds for other unsuccessful business ventures in which they were involved and

misappropriated other funds for personal use.
5. Aloha made r'nonthly payments to their inyestors fbr a period of time,

- with Perry and Rachelle Griggs claiming that the payments were returns from

Perry Griggs’ successful cOmmodity trading. In fact, these paymerits were simply |

funds obtained from the samé or other participants.

i_Defendants have_ engaged in ¢onduct*_in violation of Sections 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of |

the Commodity Exchange Act (“Act”), 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2006), and
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Sections 4b(a)(1)(A), and (C), 4k(2), 4jm_, and 4o(1)(A) and (B) of the Act, as
amended By'thc Food, Conservation, and Energy Act of 2008,_Pub_. L. No. 110-
246, Title XHI (the CF"fC Reauthorization Act éf 2008), §§ 13101-13204, 122 |
Stat. 1651 (enacted June 18, 2008), and the .Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Aét 0f 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-203, Title VII (the Wall Street
Transparency and Accountability Act of 201(_)),. §§701-774 (enacted Jul'y 21,2010),
to be codified at 7 U.S.C. §& 6b(a)(1)(A) and (C), 6k(2), 6m, and 60(1){A) and (B).- _7
- 7. AcCordirigly, pursuaht to Section 6¢(a) of the Act, as amendéd, to be’

codified at 7 USC§ 13a-1, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

| (“Plaintiff ", “CFTC” or “Commission”) brings this action to enjoin the unlawful

acts and practi_cés of Defendants. In addition, Plaintiff seeks disgorgement of all
benefits received by Defendants, restitution, rescission, civil monetary penalties,
and such other equitable_: relief that the Court may deem necessary or appropriate.

Jurisdicti_on and Venue

8. The Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 6¢ of

the Act, as amended, to be dodiﬁed at7US.C. §13a~1, which provides that,

e —e-ng—ag%ngfifn;—'oﬁs~abett‘twto‘-engagein*arr}%aé’tﬁr-practicewmathnstitutes?a-vioiaﬁql1

whenever it shall appear to the Commission that any person has engaged in, is _

of any provision of the Act or any rule, regulation.,- or order 'pfomulgatcd



thereunder, the Commission may bring an action against such person to eojoin
such practice or to enforce compliance with the Act.

9. Venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Section 6¢(e) of the
Act, as aﬁiended, to be'oodiﬁed at, 7 USC §13a-1(c), because Defendants are
found 1n, inhabit, or transact business in this District, or the acts and practices in
.violation of the Act occurred, are .occurring, or are about to occur witﬁin this
District; arriong other places.

10-. Unless restrained snd enjoined by tﬁis Court, Defendants are likely to -
engage in the acts and practices alleged in _this Complaint or in similar acts and
practices, as described'.rhore fullf below. |

Parties

1. The U.S. Commoditv Futures Trading Commission is an independeot
federal .regulat_ory- gigency char_ge_d by Congress with ;che resp_onsibility for”
adx_ninisteriog andeﬁfor_ciﬁg the provisions of the Act, as amended, to be codified at
7 U.S;C. §§ et sé_q., and the Commission’s Regulations_promolgated thereonder, 17

CFR.§§1.1 ét seq. (2010). | |
12. P m Jay Grlgg s is an individual whose most recent known address

w&wn%&s#egas%@evadaﬁHe{eﬁLﬂwfaédresssomeﬁme—aroundﬂanuary 2010:

HI_S psesent whereabouts 'a:rerunrlq_lown. VPenfy -Grlggs has never been reglstered.

- with the Commission in any capacity:



13. Rachelle Griggs is Perry Griggs® wife. She maintained an address in
-+ Las Vegas, Nevada until around January 2010. Her present whereabouts are

unknown. She has never been registered with the Commission in any capacity.

14. Aloha Trading Combaﬁv, Inc, is-a Nevada corporation incorporated
by Rachelle Griggs in 2005 with a principal placé of business in Las Vegas,

| Nevada. It ceased operations in or about January 2010. Rachelle Griggs was the

sole officer and director and she, along with Perry Gri.ggs,' controlled Aloha’s

operations. Aloha has never been registered with the Commission in any capacity.

Other Relevant Individuals and Entities

15 Kapu’é Keolanui (“Keolanui”) resides in Honolulu, Hawaii. She has
never been registered with the Commission in any capacity. ‘Under the direction of
Perry and Rachelle :Griggs, Keolénui solicited persons residing in Hawaii to invest

in commodity futures.

16.. Paradise Trading, LLC (“Paradise”) is a Neva_da limited liability
corporation formed in 2006. Rachelle Griggs and Keolanui were both directors
- and part—owhefs of Paradise and they, along V-v“ith. Perry Griggs, COnﬁolled _

~ Paradise’s operations. Paradise ceased_operations inor about January 2010.

Paradise-has-never-been registered-with-the-Commission in-any capacity.



t

*"—__—(*tr)-determirri-ng—theepr'tcefb asi'swof“any-trar_rsacti‘on*in--intersterte—_'commerce*irr;sucl1

Statutory Background

17. | Section la(5) of the Act, as amended, to be codified at 7 U.S.C.
§ 1a(5) (2006), defines a Commodity Pool Operator (“CPO”) as any person
engaged in the business that i_s:of the nature of an .investment trust, syndicate, or
similar form of enterprise, and vt/ho in connectiontherewith, selicits', accepts, or
receives from others, funds, securities, or property, either directly or throﬁgh
capital contributions, the sale of stock or other forms of securities, or otherwise, for
the.purpose of trading in any commodity for future delivery on or subject to the
rules of any contract market or derivatives transaction execution facility.

18.  Prior to being amended, Section 4b(a)(.2)(.i) atnd (iii) of_the Act,
7 U. S C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(1) and (111) (2006), made 1t uniawful for any person to (1) cheat
or defraud or attempt to cheat or defraud or (iii) willfully decelve or attempt to

de’cew_e by any means whatsoever other persons in or in connection with orders to

- make, or the making of, contracts of sale of commodities, for future delivery,

made, or to be made, for or on behalf of _such other persons where such contracts

for future delivery were or may have been used for (a) hedging any transaction in

interstate commerce in such commodity, or the products or byproducts thereof, or

commodity; c_ir (c) delivering any such commodity sold, ‘ship:ped‘or received in.

' interState commerce for the fulfillment thereof.



19.  Similarly, Section 4b(a)(1)(A) and (C) of the Act, as amended, to be .
codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(1)(A) and (C), prohibit any person, in or in
connection with any order to make, or the making of, any contract Of sale of any'
commodity in interstate commerce or for future d'elivery that is made, or to be |

made, on or subject to the rules of a designated contract market, for or on behalf of

any person (A) to cheat or defraud or attempt to cheat or defraud the other person;

or (C) willfully to deceive or attempt to deceive the other person by any means
Whatsoeyer n regafd to any other or contract or the disposition or execution of any
order or contract, or in regard to any act éf égency performed, with réspect to any
-ofdér or contract for the (;thef pe_:rSOn. |

20. Cémmiésion Regulation 1.3(aa)(3), 17 CFR §1.3(‘aa)(3) (2010),
defines an Associated Pé_rsdn (“AP”), with c;ertain qualiﬁcatic')ns, as a natural B |

person associated with any CPO as a partner, officer, emplq};ee, consultant, or

agent (or any person occupying a similar status or performing similar functions), in -

- any cz_ipacity that involves: (i) the solicitation of funds, securities, or property for a _

participation in a commodity pool; or (ii) the supervision of any person or persons

so engaged.

2T Section 4m( )y of the Act, as amended, to be codified at 7 US<C

- § 6m(1), with cefcain 'ex_ceptio_ris,__prohibits’ anyone acting as a CP_O from making.



"*——_~—~——~'—~deceit—u0n~any—part-ici"pantf@r-prospectivepaﬁicipaﬁt%‘i’:i"

use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce in
connection with its business unless registered with the Commission as a CPO.
22, Section 4k(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §6k(2), provides that it shall be
unlawful for any person to be associated with a CPO as:
a partner, officer, employee, consultant or agent (or any person
occupying a similar status or performing similar functions), in any
capacity that involves (1) the solicitation of funds, securities or property
for participation in a commodity pool or (ii) the supervision of any
person or persons so engaged, unless such person is registered with the

- Commission as an assoc1ated person ... of such commodity pool
operator.

Sectién 4k(2) of the Act as amended, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 6k(2). Section
4k(2) further prov1des that 1t shall be unlawful for a CPO to “permrt such person to |
become or remain assoc1ated with the commodity pool operator in a.ny such
capacity if the: comm.odity pool operator knew or should haye known that such
person tvvas not éo_ .r.egistere_(-i B

- 23. Under Séctions 40.(1)(A)la.11.1d-(B) of the Act, as amended, to be
codified at 7 U.S..C. §§ 60(1)(A) and (B), CPOS’ and ltheir APs may not emﬁloy any
device, scheme or artifice to d_é_fratud aﬁy participant ér prospective palt'icipa.nt; or

‘engage in any transaction, practice or course of business that operates as a fraud or




Facts
A. Background

24. In August 2003, Perry Griggs was sentenced to a prison term of 96
months after pleading guilty to charges of vrire fraud and money laundering in a
criminal prosecution ear)tioned USA v. Perry Jay Griggs, No. EDCR 02-05-RT
| (C.D. Cal.). Tlrrese charges 'arose out ef a scheme in which he solicited funds -fo'r'
investment in coffee ﬁltures, claiming- that he had inside information fhat
guaranteed 100% returns on the investments. He did not, in fact, invest any ef the
funds in futures; iflStead he misappropriated the funds fer personal expenses and to
| pay off other 1nvestors As part of that sentence, Perry Grlggs was ordered to pay
restitution of over $3 mllllon to 47 individual victims.

_ '25. | Perry’Grlggs Ee'gan serving hllS _sentence. at the federal prison camp at
' 'Nelli.s Air_Force Base (“Nellis”)_ in Las Vegas, Nevada, on Qctober 20, 2003. Ar' |
or aboﬁt the same '.time,- Rachell_:e Griggfs moved to Las Vegas. -

26 Soon aﬁer ar.rriving' at Nellis, Perry Griggs began soliciting_.‘
_inve.stment.s from fe_llovr pﬁsoners. At the same tirrle, Raehe'He Griggs began

soliciting investments from inmates’ family members, whom she met dljring' her

VVlSltS to the prlson as well as other members of the general public. Ma.ny ofﬁle

1nd1v1duals sohc1ted by Perry and Rachelle Grlggs were from Hawaii.
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B. .- Fraudulent Operation of Aloha Trading Conﬂpany, Inc.

27. - In June 2005, Perry and Rachelle Griggs formed Aloha, listing
Rachelle Griggs as the sole officer and director. In July 2005, Rachelle Griggs
Jopéned a commodity futures trading ac'coﬁnt on behalf of Aloha with Man
Financial, Inc. (the “Aloha Accdtmt”). Rachelle Griggs also signed agreements on
behalf of Aloha, commi_l'nicated with Aloha’s par[ic.ipants and controlled Aloha’s
bank accounts. | | | |

~ 28. Toinduce proépective participants to invest rhoney with them, Bofh |
_P.erry and Racheﬁe Griggs claimed that Perry Griggs was a multi-mill;dnaire '
, exi:)ertin connnodity 'futures trading. Both ihdividual Deféndahts convinced
_participants to refinance their moftgages or liquidate their re_tirément savings in
order to i_nvesf with Alo_hei’s c_ommodity fu_tures trading program. In truth, Perry
Gi;iggs had no prior success with commodities trading and Was not Wealthy.

29. Both Perry.and Rgchelle Griggs-both told prospective pérticipants thét f
 their investments carried no risks and that profits were guaranteed.
30. Both Perry -and Rachelle Griggs told s’om‘elpal.'tiqipahts that Perry -

- Griggs would trade commodity futures contracts with participénts" funds, and his

trading would generate such eﬁormous returns that Aloha could make guaranteed
monthly payments to partic_ipant‘s-,-_in addition to a lump payment of as much as $3.

‘million at the_: end of the investment term.
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31. Other prospective participants who were asked to make smaller

investments were promised by both individual Defendants returns of 25% within

three to four months, along with full refunds of their priﬁcipal’.

32.  Both Perry and Rachelle Griggs told participants and prospective
participants that Perry Gfiggs was éerﬁng time for tax offenses insfead of wire
fraud and money laundering in connection with a Ponzi scheme. Neither Perry nor
Rachelle disclosed to any participant or prospective pérticipant the material fact
that Perry Griggs had been ordered to pay over $3 million in restitu_tion. to victims
of his carlier comfnodity fraud scam.

'33.  Both Perry and R_achel_l‘e Griggs omitted other material iﬁformation in

their solicitations of prospective participants by failing to disclos_e that (a) none of-

the Defendants were registered with the Commission in any capacity; (b)onlya

fraction of the fuhds participants gave Defendants would actually be invested in
commodities; '.(c) Perry and Rachelle Griggs would misappropriate much of the -
remaining ﬁmds; and (d) any returns that a-participant received Would be paid from

the participant’s own dep-o'sit or deposits made by other participants, and not from

profits ff_om trading commodity futures contracts.

34, Both Perry and Rachelle Griggs knew that_,the Statements and

- omissions 1n paragraphs 27-33 were frauduleht at the time that i:hey made them,

élnd they made them with the purpose of cheating, defrauding, aﬁd Willfully
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deceiving participants in connection with the trading of commodity futures
cdnt'racts. |

35, While he was incarcerated, Perry Griggs executed trades in the Aloha
chount via the Internet aﬁd/or ona telephone, usihg funds Defendants had
solicited. Perry Griggs also_dii‘eéted Rachelle Griggs to execute certain trades in
the Aloha Account. |

36. Iﬁ furtherance of fheir fraudulent scheme, Defendants made use (').f thé :
| US Mails to, among other things, (a) mail s;everal investment reqeipts from Las'.
Vegas to a participant in Hawaii in February and March 2006, (b) mail a Purported |
| investment statement from Las Vegas tﬁ a participant‘inHaWaii in May 2()06;
(c)rrecei\}e a $200,000 inVe.stlr.nent- check mailed bya ﬁa_rtic_ipant in _H;aWaii to Las
_ Végas in July 2006, and (d) féqeiye two investﬁéntch'écks, fotaling $3(.),0.0(.)', |
 mailed by a participant in Califomia to Lés Vega‘.s in October 2008. |

C. Fr’audulent Operation of Paradise Trading, LLC

37. In 2006, Raéhellé and Perry Griggs convinced Keolanui, whose
husband was incarcerated with Perry, to form a Hawaii-based commodity futures

‘investment company for the purposes of marketing an identical investment

‘program to Keolaﬁﬁi’siriends_ and family. To that end, Keoﬁﬁui and Rachelle

Griggs formed Pa_rad_iée in late 2006. Both Keolanui and Rachelle Griggs were
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listed as directors of Paradise, and Rachelle Griggs was a51% owner of the
company. | |

38. Under the direction of Rachelie and Perry Griggs, and based on the
statements they made to her, Keolanu.i solicited investmenta from her friends and
.family. Keolanui told prospective patticipan—ts that the investment she was
marketing had no risk, and was guaranteed to make a profit, just as she had been
told by Rachelle and Perry Griggs.. Keolanui then sent the majority of the funds |
- she received to Rachelle antl t’erry Griggs for trading commodity futures.

39. Under the .direction of Perry and Rachelle Griggs, Keolanui alsa met
personally with several prospective Aloha participants Iiving.-in Hawaii and _
a331sted them in malﬂng wire transfers of funds dlrectly to Aloha

D. Defendants Profits _

- 40. Paradlse partlclpants 1nvested at total of over $1 mllhon in 2007 and‘
2008, approx1mately $663,000 of which Keolanm Wn"ed to Aloha behevmg that
- Defendants would use those funds to trade commodlty futures contracts. Includmg
those Parad1sa funds, Dafendants recelved a total of approx1mately $3 mllhon from

partlclpants between 2005 and 2009 Most of those funds were deposned 1nto .

_ Aloha s bank account via wire transfer

| - 41, Defend_a_nts used that $__3 millibn in the following way:
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42,

. $467,000 was wired ﬁrom Aloha to Paradise. Perry and Rachelle

Griggs led Keolanui to believe that these funds represented the returns
from successful commodities trades made by Perry Griggs; Keolanui
used some of these funds to satisfy Paradise’s obligations to its

participants.

. $775,000 was deposited into. the Aloha Account in 2005 and 2006.

Defendants sus_tained trading losses of 83% of these funds and

withdrew $130,000 in 2006 and 2007.

. Approximately $1.1 million was paid as “returns” to participants of

Aloha and Paradise.

. The remaining approximately $1 million was misappropriated for
-Perry and Rachél_le Griggs" own personal use, including__payihents for

luxury car leases, the rcntal'of a home in Hawaii, the purchase of

jewelry, and the chartering of a pri‘}ate jet.

E. The Scheme Collapses

Pcrry'GriggS was released from prison ianept'ember 2008. By late -

2008, Paradise no longer had sufﬁ'ci-ént funds to satisfy all of the monthly

—payments that were due under ifs participant agreements. Shortly thereafter, Aloha

also began to fail to make some_' of the monthly 'payments that were due under its N

participant agreements.

15



43.  Perry Griggs began to communicate directly with Aloha and Paradise
participaﬁts vja' email and telephone calls, repeatedly _‘promising thefn that he
would resume makingltheir monthly payménts as éoon as he closed on a real estate
deal in San Diego. These communicatiqns continued through the sﬁmin_er of 2009-.:

The last payment to any participant of Aloha or Paradise was sent in or about

September 2009.

- 44. At about the same time, Perry Griggs Begén promising Aloha and
Paradise participants\ that he would send them their money in December 2009.
Those promises cOntinued fhro_ugh December. Near the end of Dék:ember-2009, hé
promised several participants.that money would be wired to them on January 5, |

2010. No such wires Were ever sent.

45, On or about J anuary 5, 2010 Perry and Rachelle Grlggs stopped

'respondlng to all attempts by Aloha and Paradlse participants to contact them

They dlsappeared at around the same tlme, and their whereabouts are currently
unknown
VIOLATIONS OF THE COMMODITY EXCHANGE ACT

Count One

Violations of Section 4b(a)(1)(i) and (iii) of the Act and
Section 4b(a)(1)(A) and (C) of the Act, as amended:
Fraud by Misappropriation, Misrepresentation and Omission

46.  Paragraphs 1 through 45 are re-.éllég.ed'and incorpOraied herein.
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47. Prior to being amended, Section 4b(a)(2)(1) and (iii) of the Act,
7U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2006), made it unlawful for any person to (i) cheat
‘or defraud or aﬁempt to cheat or defraud; or (iii) Wﬂlfully deceive or attempt to
deceive by ahy means Whétsde_ver other persons in or in connect,ion_witﬁ orders to
make, or the making of, contracts of Salé of commodities, for future delivery,
~ made, or to be made, for or on behalf of such other persons where such contracts
for ﬁltufe delivery were ér may have been used for (a) hedging any transaction 1n
interstate commerce in sﬁch .cbmmodity, or the prodﬁcts or byproducts théreof, or
(b) _detérmining the price basis of any transaction in interstate commerce n such.
éomrrllodity,'.c.)r (c) delivering any such cémmoditysold; shipped or _receivéd in
interstate Commerce for the ﬁ.llﬁllnieﬁt thereof.

. 48. Slmllarly, Sectlon 4b(a)(1)(A) and (C) of the Act as amended tobe
codified at 7 U.S. C §§ 6b(a)( 1)(A) and (C) proh1b1t any person in orin
connectlon with any order to make, or the making of, any contract o_f sale of any
commodity in interstate comméfce or for future :deliver_y that ié madé, or to be |
made, o_n.or Subject to ;[he rﬁles of a designated contract market’,. for 6r on Eehalf' of

any person (A) to cheat or defraud or attempt to cheat or defraud the other person;

““or (C) willfully to deceéive or attempt 6 deceive the other person by any means

- whatsoever in regard to any order or contract or the disposition or execution of any

17



order or contract, or in regard to any act of agency performed, with respect to any
order or contract for the other person. -
49.  As set forth above, from at least 2005 through December 2009, in or

in connection with ﬁJtures_contfacts made, or to be made, for or on behalf of other

persons, Defendants cheated, defrauded or attempfed to cheat or defraud other

persons and willfully deceived or attempted to deceive other persons in connection

. with offering of, or entering into the commodity transactions alleged herein, for or

on behalf of such pefsons, by () making material misrepresentations including but |

~ not limited to, falsely claiming that Perry Griggs was a multi-millionaire expert -
- commodity’ tra_der, falsely claiming that funds deposited with Aloha were
' guarahte_:ed safe, and profnising enormous returns in the form of inonthly and lump

- sum payments based on proﬁfable comﬁlodity futurés_ trading when they knew that

the payments were simply taken from other participants’ f_uhds; and (b) failing to |
disclose that the funds were likely to be-used to pay personal expenses for Perry
and/or Rachelle Griggs, or to pay othéf-investors and not to trade commodity

futures contracts, the true nature of Perry Griggs’ criminal history, that they were

“not registered with the Commission in any capa@ity, and (c) misappropriating

funds invested by participants.

50.  Defendants engaged in the acts and practices described above

knowingly, willfully or with reckless disregard for the truth.
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51. By this conduct, Defendants violated Section 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of .
the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(1) and (iii) (2006), before June 18, 2008, and
Defendants violated Section 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) of the Act, as amended, to be |
codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(1)(A) and (C) with respect to conduct on or after
June 18, 2008. |

52, The acts, omissions and failures of Perry and Rachelle Griggs., as
described in this Count One, were committed within the scope of fﬁeif employment

with Aloha and, therefore, Aloha is liable {or their acts, omissions and failures

constituting Violations of Section 4b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) of the Act (with respect to

conduct prior to June 18, 2008) and Section 4b(a)(1)(A) and (C) of _the Act, as
amended (With respect to conduct on or aﬂe: June 18, 2008), pursuant to Sectior__l
_ 2(a)(_1 )(B) of the Apt, es arﬁeﬁded, to be codiﬁed at 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)}(1)(B), and
Commission Regulation 12,17 CFR.§ 1.2 (201-0)'." |

53. Durihg the relevant time, Perry and Rachelle _Grigg$ directly and
indirectly coritrolled Aloha, and did not actrin good faitﬁ or .knowi'ngly induced
dlrectly or 1nd1rectly, the acts constituting Aloha s violations descrlbed in this

‘_Count One Pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Act, as amended to be cod1ﬁed at

_TUS .C.§ 130(b) Perry and RachelI"Grlggs are theretore 11able for AToha s

v1olat1ons described in this _C_ou'nt One to the same exte_nt as Aloha.
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- 54.  Each nﬁsabpropriation of funds and each misrepresentation or
omission of material fact, inéluding but not limited to those spéciﬁcally alleged
,hereiﬂ, ié alleged as a separate and distinct violation of Section 4b(a)(2)(1) and (iii)
of the Act, .7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(2)(i) and (iii) (2006), with 'respect to acts before
* June 18, 2008» and as a violation of Section 4b(a)(1)(A) and (Cr) of the Act, as
amended, to be codlﬁed at 7 US.C. § 6b(a)(l)(A) and (C) with-respect to acts on
_or aﬂer June 18, 2008. |
COUNT TWO

Violations of Section 40(1)(A) and (B) of the Act:
Fraud by a CPO and its APs

| 55. | Paragraphé 1 through 45 are realleged and incorpbrated herein by
reference.
56 | S_ection 4o(1) of the Act, in relevant part, prohib_its CPOs and theif
APs, 'by ﬁsé of the mails or any means' or instrumentality of interstate commerce, |
directly or indire.ct.ly (A) to employ any device, schem.é or artifice to defraud any
: pértiéipanf;’ of_ (B) to engage in ariy transacti'on, préctic_e or course of business that
_Operates asié fraud_ or deceit upoﬁ ény participant. | |

57. Begmnlng in or about 2005 and continuing through as least December

2009, Perry and Rachelle Grlggs while actmg as APs of a CPO, and Aloha wh1le |
actmg as a CPO, violated Se.ctlon 4o(1) of the Act, as amended, to be codified at
7U.S.C. § 60(1), in that they employed schemes or artifices to defraud pool -
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participants or prospective pool participants or engaged in transactions, practices or
a course of business whrch operated as a fraud or deceit upon pool participants or
prospective pool participants by using the mails .or ether means or instrumentalities |
of interstate commerce. | |

- 58. The u_se of the marls or other instrumentalities of interstate commerce
included, _bur are not limited to: (a) making wire transfers to and from Aloha’s
bank accourrt, (b) using the U.S. Mail to send investment receipts and statements |
from Las Vegas to participants in Hawaii, and (¢) accepting an investment check
mailed from Hawaii to Las Vega's_, all in viblation of Sections 40(1)(A) and (B) of |
the Act

| 59 Defendants engaged irr_'the acts and r)ractices described above
knowingly, Willﬁr_lly_or with recklesS disregard for the truth.

60, The’ acrs, Orrrissions and failures of Perry and RachelIeGriggs, as -

described in this Count Two, were committed within the scope of their

ernpl'oyment with Aloha and, therefore, Aloha ia liable for their acts, emisSions and -.
'~ failures c0nstituting violations- of Section 40(1) of the Act, pursuant to Section

- 2(a)(1)(B) of the Act, as amended to be codlﬁed at7U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B) and

— Lommlssmn Regulatlon T217 CFR. § 12 (2010)

- 6l. Durrng the relevant trme Perry and Rachelle Grrggs drrectly and

iridirectl_y controlled Alocha and 1t_s employees, and d_1d not act in good faith or
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knowingly _indubed, directly or indirectly, the acts constituting Aloha’s Violations |
described in this Count Two. Pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Act, as amended, to
be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 13c(b), Perry and Rachelle Griggs are therefore liable for |
A_loha’s violations described in fhis Count Twor to the same extent as Aloha. |
62. - Each misappropriation of funds and each misrepresentation or

omission of material fact, including but not limited to those specifically alleged

- herein, is alleged as a separate and distinct Vicﬂation of Sections 40(1)(A) and (B).
rbf the Act. | | |

COUNT THREE

~ Violation of Section 4m(1) of the Act:
Acting as a CPO without Registration

63 Paragtaphs 1 through 45 are rezilleged and incorporated herein by
reference. . | | |
64, | Séction 4ﬁ1(.1) of the Act, as amended, to be cﬁdiﬁed at 7'U.S.C.
B § 6m( 1),.prohibits anyone acting as a CPO from ﬁlaking ﬁse of the mails or any |
means or rinstrumen.talit'y of interstate commerce in connection with its business
unle_sé registéred with the‘Co'mmission asa CPO.

65. Aloha acted asa CPO by engaging in the business that is of the nature

of an investment trust, _s.yndicate, or,similar;forr'n of enterprise, and, in connection
therewith, soliciting, a¢¢eptin’g, or receiving from others, funds for the purpose of
. trading commodity futures. Aloha used the mails or other instrumentalities of
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interstate commerce in connection with its activities as a CPO. without the benefit -
of registration as a CPO, in violation of Section 4m(1) of the Act, as amended, to
be codified at 7 U.S.C. §6m(1).

66. Perry and Rachelle Griggs directly or indirectly controlled Aloha and

- did not act in good faith or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, the acts

constituting Aloha’s violations alleged in this Count Three. Perry and Rachelle

Griggs are therefore liable for Aloha’s violations of Section 4m(1) of the Act, as

amended, to be codified at 7 US.C. § 6m(1), pursuant to Section 13(b) of the Act,

as amended, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. .§ 13c(b).

67. Each use by Defendants of the mails or any means or instrumentality
of i'_ntér_state commerce in connection with their business as a CPO without proper

registration during the relevant time period, including but not limitéd to those

'speciﬁcally alleged herein, is alleged'-as a separate and distinct violation of Section

~ 4m(1) of the Act, as amended, to be codified at 7 U:S.C. § 6m(1).

COUNT FOUR

Violation of Section 4Kk(2) of the Act::
o Failure to Register as APs and
Allowmg Unreglstered APs to Remain Associated with a CPO

'68. Paragraphs T througH 45 are realIeged and 1ncorporated hereln by' o  '

reference.
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69. Section 4k(2) of the Act, ae arnended, to be codified at 7 U.S.C.

§ 6k(2), requires that APs of CPOs are required to be registered with the |
Commission. Further, a CPO violates Section 4k(2) of the Act, as amended, to be
codified at 7 U.S.C. § 6k(2), when it allows an unregistered AP to become or-
remein_associated with the CPO when the CPO knew or should have known that
the AP was not registered as such with the Commission.

70. Perry and Rachelle Griggs acted as APS'When they engaged in their
solicitation activities for Aloha. Because they engageti in the’ir.AP activities
Without the benefit of registretion as APS ofa CPO, Perry and Rachelle Griggs
violated Section 4k(2) of the Act, as amended, to be codified at 7 U.S.C. § 6k(2).

71.  Aloha violated Section 4k(2) of the Act, to be eodiﬁed:at 7US.C
§ '6'k(2), by al_l.owing Perfy and Rachelle Griggs to act as unregistered APs of the
company when it knew ot should have known that they were not 'regietered with .'

the CFTC. | | |
| | RELIEF REQUESTED
WHEREFORE Plaintiff respectfully requests that this (ljoutt as authorized

by Sectlon 6¢c of the Act, as amended to be cod1ﬁed at 7 U.S. C §13a—1 and

o 'pursuant to its own equltable powers enter

A.  Anorder ﬁndmg Defendants v1olated Sectlons 4b(a)(2)(1) and (111) of

the Act 7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(2)(1) and (111) (2006) (W1th respect to conduct before June |
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18, 2010); Sections 4b(a)(1)(A) and (C) of the Act, as amended, to be codified at

7 U.S.C. § 6b(a)(1)(A) and (C) (with respect to conduct on or after June 18, 2010);

and Sections 4k(2), 4m and 40(1)(A) and (B) of the Act, as amended, to -be
codified at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6k(2), 6m, and 66(1)(A) and (B); |

B.  Anorderof pénnanént injunction prohibiting Defende_mts and any |
other persdn's or entities in active conéert with thén‘i from éngagihg in conduct inr

violation of Sections 4b(a)(1)(A) and (C), 4k(2), 4m, and/or 40(1)(A) and (B) of

~the Act, as amended, to be éodiﬁed at 7 U.S.C. §§ 6b(a)(1)(A) and (C), 6k(2), 6m,

and 60(1)(A) and (B) ; .
cC. An 6rder of p'efmanent'injunction prohibiting Defendants and any of

their affiliates, agents, servants, employees, successors, assigns, attorneys and :

p.ersons in active concert with them who receive actual notice of such order by

* personal service or otherwise, from engaging, directly or indirectly, in:

1.  trading on or subjecf to the rules of any regisfered éntity, as that
- term is defined in Section 1a(2_9) of the Act, as amended, to be c_od_iﬁed at7
U.S.C. § 1a(29);

2. entering into any transactions involving commodity futures,

~options on commodity futures, commodity options (as that term is defined in
- Commission Regulation 32.1(b)(1), 17 CF.R. § 32.1(b)(1). (2010)) - |

(“commodity o_ptions”); and/or foreign currency (as described in Sections
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2(c)(2)(B)-and 2(c)(2)(C)(i) of the Act, as amended, to be codified at 7
U.S.C. §§ 2(c)(2)(B) and 2(c)(2XC)(i)) (“forex contracts™) for their own

personal account or for any account in which they havea dlrect or indirect

interest;

3. having any commodity futures, options on commodity futures,

commodity options, and/or forex contracts traded on their behalf;

4. cohtrolling or directing the trading for or on behalf of any other |

person or entity, whether by power of attorney or otherwise, in any account
involving commodity futures, options on commodity futures, commodity
options, and/or forex contracts;

5. soliciting, receiving, or accepting any funds from any person

for the phrpose of purchasing or selling.any commodity fﬁtur‘es__,bptions on

commodityfutur-es, commodity options, and/or forex contracts;
6. applying for registration or claiming exemption from

registratien with the Commission in any capacity, and engaging in any

_'activity requiring such.registration or exemption from registration With the

Comm1ssmn except as provided for in Cornm1ssmn Regulatlon 4. 14(a)(9)

17CFR §a. 14(a)(9) (2010)

7. actmg asa prmmpal (as. that term is deﬁned in Comm1ssmn

Regulatlon 3. l(a) 17 C. F R. § 3.1(a) (2010)) agent or any other ofﬁcer or
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employee of any person or enﬁty régistered, exempted ffom registratidn or
required to be registered with the Commission, except as provided forin
| Commission Regulation 4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) (2010);

D.  An order directing Defendants to pay civil monetary penalties under
‘Section 6¢ of the Act, as amended, to be cddiﬁed at 7 U.S.C. §9a, to be assessed by
the Court separately égainst each of them, in amounts not more than the higher of
$130,000 for each violation occurring from October 24, 2004 th;ough October 21, '_
2008 and $140,000 for each violation occurring after October 22, 2008, or triple
the monetary gain to Defendants for each violation of the Act; B

E.  Anorder directing Defendants to disgorge, pursuaﬁt .to such procédu_re

as the Court may order, all benefits received from the acts or practices that

constitute violations of the Act, as described here, and pijejudgment interest thereon

from the date of such \-fiolations;
F.  Anorder directing Defendants to make restitution by making whole
."_each and every participant in Aloha and Paradise whose funds were _receiv’ed.or
used by them in violation of the'_proyisions Qf the Act as described herein, |

: inciuding_pre-judgment interest;

"TG.  An order directing Defendants, and any successors thereof, to rescind, -

pursuant to such procedures as the Court may order, all contracts _and a’greeménts, :

whethe_r implied or express, é'n‘te‘red'-into between them and any of the participants
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whose funds were received by them as a result of the acts and practices which

constituted violations of the Act, as amended, as described herein;

H.  An order requiring D_efendants to pay costs and fees as permitted by

28 U.S.C. §§ 1920 and 2412 (2006); and

- L Such further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

Dated: October 28, 2010

Respectfully submitted,

%S%M

Jennifer E. Smiley
Joseph A. Konizeski
Scott R. Williamson

Rosemary Hollinger

U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES
TRADING COMMISSION
Division of Enforcement

- 525 West Monroe Street, Sulte 1100

Chicago, IL 60661 ,
(312) 596-0530 (Smiley)
(312) 596-0546 (Konizeski) -
(312) 596-0714 (facsimile)
jsmiley@cfic.gov

Ikon_lzeskl@cﬂc.gov -
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AO 440 {Rev. 12/09) Summonsin a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

District of Hawaii

U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES TRADING

COMMISSION ;
Plaintiff )
o V. ) Civil Action No.
ALOHA TRADING COMPANY INC.; PERRY JAY )’
GRIGGS; RACHELLE GRIGGS )
Defendant . )
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION
To: (Defendant’s name and address) Aloha Trading Company, Inc. Perry JaY Griggs
clo Nevada Corporate Advantage, LLC 11286 Winter Cottage Pl..
2620 Regatta Drive Suite 102 Las Vegas, NV 89135

Las Vegas, NV 89128 ‘
Rachelle Gridggs-
11286 Winter Cottage Pl.
. _ _ Las Vegas, NV . 89135
A lawsuit has been ﬁ!éd against you. .

- W;thm 21 days after service of this summeons on you (not counting the day you received it} — or 60 days if you -
*are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed.-R. Civ.
P. 12 (2)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motlon must be served on the p]amtlff or piamtlff’ s attorney,
- whose name -and address are: ‘ :
Jennifer E. Smlley
U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission
525 W. Monroe Street, Suite 1100
Chicago, iL.. 60661

- If you fa.ll to.respond, _}udgment by default will be entered dgainst you for the relief demanded in the complamt
You also must file your answer or motlon with the court, :

SUE BEE‘HA
CLERK OF COURT™

Dates October 28, 2010 - ST /s/ Er.nramq cﬁ,




A0 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 ()

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

(3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

(7 I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name) '

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date} ‘ o , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

{1 1served the summons on (name of individual) - . : _ , who is

‘ désignated by law to accept service of process on b_ehalf of trame of organization)

on (date) . Cosor
(3 1 returned the summons unexecuted because - ' ;or
) Other (specify):
' My fees are § for travel and $ , for services, for a total of $ 0.60

1 declare under 'pehélty of perjury that this information is true. - '

‘Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

T Server s address T

Additional information regarding attem‘ptéd service, etc:





